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STANDING COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC ACCOUNTS
Tuesday, January 25, 2005

1:00 p.m.

Guest: Honourable Pat Binns, Premier

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    All right, we’ll call the
meeting to order. 

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Chair, I just want to advise
that Dr. McKenna will be coming.  He’s going to be
a few minutes late.  He’s tied up with an
appointment at his office but he’ll be here as soon
as he can.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Is it okay if we direct
the members by names rather than districts?  Is
that okay with the committee?

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Chair, before . . . I guess I
have a question.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    I have one just before
we get into the questions.

Jim Bagnall (PC): How are we going to proceed
. . .

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Just wait until you’re
called and then you can proceed.  There’s a
number of witnesses coming before us.  We don’t
know how many.  This is into quite a serious
situation we’re into and it’s no offence to the
Premier.  He just happened to be first.  But does
the committee feel we should swear in the
witnesses?  Yes or no.  And if we do we’ll have to
swear in all the witnesses that come before us.
Because this is, you know, there’s a lot of money
involved here and it’s not up to me.  It’s up to the
witness but I’ve been advised that I should ask the
question to the committee if we think the witnesses
should be sworn in.

Wayne Collins (PC):   May I ask, Mr. Chair, who
gave you that advice?

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    That’s my own
personal business who gives me advice.  Who
advised you to come . . .

Wayne Collins (PC):   No, you’re making an issue
here of being sworn in, the witnesses.  You’re
saying you’ve been advised and I just feel that . .

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    I’ve been advised as
chairman . . .

Wayne Collins (PC):   . . . that we as, before
making our decision we should know the source of
that advice.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Well, I’ll give you
advice.  Now you should be able to think on your
own.  My question was it should be put through the
committee whether . . . and I don’t mean . . . the
Premier just happens to be the first person here.
I’d just as soon asking this question that it had of
been somebody else but anyway he’s the first one
and that was your people’s decision.  There’s a lot
of money involved here. There’s quite a failure of
a large corporation.  People tell me, I’ve been
advised that I should ask the committee whether .
. . it’s not my idea, it’s up to the committee . . .
whether you want the witnesses sworn in and the
question is yes or no.  but if we swear in one we’d
have to swear in them all.

Wayne Collins (PC):   And again I pose the
question which people, on whose advice?

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    I’m giving you the
advice, I’m the Chairman.  You can answer the
question.

Wilbur MacDonald (PC) :     Mr. Chairman, since
we’re an extension of the Legislature itself it is my
understanding that all witnesses before the
committee, isn’t there something within the
Legislature when you bring a witness before that
they are considered to be sworn or something.
Because I know we had this discussion some time,
perhaps a number of years ago, about that.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    You could use that
argument for MLAs but if we happen to call non-
elected officials before us the committee may
swear them in or may not.  So I don’t want to treat
anybody differently.  There could be an argument
one way or another, Mr. MacDonald, in your case
because all MLAs take an oath when they get
elected, et cetera, et cetera.  But then is it fair to
bring other witnesses that aren’t MLAs and swear
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them in if the committee decides and not swear in
the MLAs.  I just want everybody on the same
ground, the witnesses.  And if the committee
decides you want to swear them in we’ll swear
them in.  If the committee decides we don’t want to
swear them in we don’t swear them in.  It’s up to
you fellows.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Chair, I’ve been on Public
Accounts for seven years or six years now and
we’ve had people in on many issues dealing with
AgraWest, dealing with all issues across this
province and we’ve never sworn anybody in under
any practices.  We’ve had ministers before us.
Nobody was sworn in and I don’t feel that we need
to swear anybody in.  We’re here to get the
information.  All MLAs are bonded and other
people are here as an individual coming before
this committee of their own free will.  Nobody has
been subpoenaed or anything like that.  They’re
volunteer witnesses and I just think that there’s no
need whatsoever.  I’ve been on about eight
committees now since I’ve been elected and we’ve
never, ever sworn anybody in and there’s no need
to now.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Mr. MacDonald?

Wilbur MacDonald (PC) :     I agree with his
remarks.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Mr. MacAleer?

Wes MacAleer (PC):    What’s the reason for
needing that?

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    I just asked the
question. Do you want it done or not?

Wes MacAleer (PC):   No.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Mr. McKenna?

Dr. David McKenna (PC):    I agree with the
others.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Robert?

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L):   I guess we can
deal with that issue.  Hopefully there will be
witnesses, as you indicated, that this is a large
expenditure that was lost by this government and
I do hope that there will be officials come in that

are not elected officials and I guess we can deal
with that when the time comes.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Cletus Dunn?

Cletus Dunn (PC):    No need.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    All right.  We’ll
proceed with inviting . . . oh, you got a question.

Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess, Mr. Chair, what I was
wondering before we start is how we’re going to
proceed with these because we have a number of
individuals coming in and I’d like to just get a
format down as to how we’re going to deal with our
witnesses that we bring in.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Well, we got the
Premier right here today.

Jim Bagnall (PC): I understand that.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    And he’ll be invited
before us.  And when he comes before us we’ll
give him . . . I assume he would like to make a
presentation and we’ll give him ample time to do
that.  If the committee feels he’s gone too long well
then we’ll have to cut him off, but that’s going to be
up to the committee.  And we’re dealing with the
Premier today and after that normally you start
with the Leader of the Opposition and you go
around the table and ask him questions.  If that’s
not appropriate, the Leader of the Opposition is not
ready well then somebody else.  But basically how
the committee works, so basically that’s where
we’re at today is to ask questions on behalf of the
Premier.  He’s a very busy man.  He’s got Pat
Dorsey here, which is very busy also, with him.

Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess one other thing is you
said you were going to go to the Leader of the
Opposition for first questions, which we have no
problem with, and then you’re going to go to the
members of the committee next.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Yes.

Jim Bagnall (PC): And anybody that’s not a
member of the committee will have a chance after
everybody else has had a chance.  

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Yes, that’s correct.
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Jim Bagnall (PC):  Thank you.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    And if you really want
me to hand the chairman over, if I’ve got some
questions, I’ll give you the chairman while I ask the
Premier some questions, if you really want to get
technical, whatever you want to do. So if the
Premier would come forward.  We don’t want to
hold you up any longer than we’re going to have
to.  You’re a busy man.

Honourable Pat Binns, Premier: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.  I want to say hello to members here.

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Of course, Mr.
Premier, you know why you’re here.  Because of
the $31 million that is lost of taxpayer’s money and
the committee agreed at the last meeting that they
wanted you to come before us along with some
other ministers.  So you can just start.  How would
you like to do it, Mr. Premier?

Honourable Pat Binns, Premier:   Well, thank
you very much, Mr. Chairman. What I’d like to do
is begin with a statement and then open up to
questions that members would have.  And we’ll go
from there if that’s agreeable to you, sir?

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    Fine.

Honourable Pat Binns, Premier:   Well, Mr.
Chairman and members of the Public Accounts
Committee, I certainly welcome and appreciate the
opportunity to come before you today to discuss
the Prince Edward Island’s government’s
involvement with Polar Foods International.  No
question this is an important issue and it is
important that people are fully informed about this
matter and I want to commend the committee for
placing it on the agenda in this fashion.

Well, since the establishment of Polar Foods in
1998 to its eventual demise in 2004 this company
has been both praised and reviled.  Some saw the
company as part of the solution to the processing
industry in the province.  Others saw it as a
monopolistic enterprise that would exercise an
unfair advantage throughout the industry and drive
competition away. Some saw government’s
involvement as protecting the interests of the
fishermen and plant workers while others said that
government would stay, should stay away from
risky business ventures which this had the
potential to be.  

Throughout the past number of years this issue
has been the subject of intensive scrutiny,
speculation and rumour and there have been
allegations, there have been justifications, there
have been contradictions, there have been
recriminations.  Today, Mr. Chairman, I want to tell
the committee and through it the people of Prince
Edward Island why government supported the
establishment of Polar Seafoods, what worked and
was successful, what went wrong and what all this
means for the future of this vital part of our
economy and for the people who depend upon it.

This is the first opportunity I’ve had since the
Auditor General submitted the report to discuss
Polar Foods in a public fashion.  Last year we
asked the Auditor General’s office to review the
government’s financial support to Polar and the
steps taken by government to protect the interests
of taxpayers.  It was the government that
requested this.  The report make 18
recommendations and I’m pleased to tell you that
all of those recommendations are being acted
upon. Now over the past number of months
various aspects of government’s involvement have
been raised for debate and discussion and I, along
with members of the government, have responded
to questions to the best of our knowledge.  We’ve
been open and forthright in this matter since the
beginning and the report of the Auditor General
has provided additional information and
clarification.

Before proceeding with my presentation I do want
to remind members of the commitment that I made
when I first accepted the privilege of becoming
Premier of the province and that was a
commitment that I reconfirm to you today and that
is that the government I lead will be responsible
and accountable to the people it serves and I will
be open and honest with Islanders.  This has been
a guiding principle of our government.  It’s in that
spirit of openness and accountability that I
voluntarily come before you today.

First of all I want to say this issue is one that I take
very seriously.   The loss of public funds, no matter
what amount, is of concern to me as it is to all
Islanders and that’s why Islanders need an
explanation, an accounting and that’s why I am
here today.  When government first embarked on
this project it was with one fundamental overriding
goal in mind and that goal was to protect the future
of the fish processing industry in this province and
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the livelihoods as far as possible of the thousands
of fishers and plant workers who depend upon it.
At that time Prince Edward Island was in real
danger of losing much of its fish processing
industry.  There was a real risk that a majority of
jobs and large investments made in the industry
would be lost and that would have resulted in
serious adverse consequences for people living in
rural communities and for the entire economic
health of the province.  Faced with that very real
prospect, and make no doubt about it, we were
facing the eminent loss of a key economic sector,
government acted with the best of intentions to
protect this vital part of our fishers economy.  That
was seven years ago.

Today I’m pleased to note that the fishing industry
is thriving and growing. It does have difficulties but
the processing sector which was disappearing is
healthier, probably more confident and self-reliant
than it’s been in years that I’ve been around this
business and that’s about 25. The past three years
have seen the processing industry stabilize.  A
number of processing operations, including the
cooperatives, are showing modest profits.  There
are new investments in the industry along with
plans for diversification.  The number  of
processing and related jobs is growing.  The sale
of Polar Foods has been made to a company with
sufficient resources to finance its continued
operations, growth and development. Government
has not been asked for new financial assistance or
intervention and we believe the industry, for the
first time in decades, is now in a position to sustain
itself and hopefully move forward.

I’ve been asked if I have regrets in government’s
involvement in Polar Foods International, I do
regret certainly that Polar Foods entered in failure
and that money was lost.  On the other hand,
given the situation we were facing seven years
ago, government acted to protect the interest of
fishers, processors, their employees and the future
of rural communities across this province.  The
government embarked on a course of action which
we believed was the best response to meeting that
challenge.  We were not entirely successful but we
were successful in saving the industry to protect
the livelihoods of fishermen and plant workers and
we helped put a firm foundation under the industry.

Now Mr. Chairman, and members of the
committee, the loss of Polar Foods is partially
offset by gains which we made in protecting the

vital part of the economic life of the province.  The
financial problems faced by Polar Foods is partly
offset by the very real progress that has been
made in protecting and stabilizing the industry and
in my remarks, I will be presenting some figures in
this regard.

Members of the committee, you need to
understand that an entire industry was at risk in
1998 and we were in very real danger of losing a
vital part of our economy.  I am sure that given the
same situation, any government would have had
the same intent to achieve the same goal that we
set out to achieve.  I believe it’s important for the
committee to better understand the problems of
the processing industry in the early years of the
1990s and I could go back before that because
these problems have been around a long time.
But I’ll deal with it from that point forward.  That
understanding is essential to comprehending the
grave situation we are facing.  

The problems in the seafood industry, particularly
related to lobster processing were mounting over
the two decades leading up to the 1990s through
the 60s and 70s the fishery and processing sector
had in fact been targeted by governments for
enhancement, development and job creation
throughout this province and across the Atlantic
Region, we saw significant investment of
development capital in plants and in infrastructure.
New plants were built, older plants were upgraded,
new processes were developed, new technologies
were introduced, freezer capacity was increased
and overall capacity was expanded.  Most all of it
with government support.  
A range of federal and provincial governments
provided financial and technical support to the
expansion of the processing sector.  Unfortunately,
much of it was directed to the physical assets, in
other words, buildings, equipment and
infrastructure.  The other aspects were somewhat
ignored, other critical requirements of a successful
processing operation.  Some would say they are
more critical.  Things like looking at value added
initiatives, new products, new product
commercialization, research and development,
adaptation, marketing systems, packaging,
distribution, information systems and cost control.
And Mr. Chairman, management and staff
development and a range of other needs to make
plants more competitive and more self reliant.

During the same period of time, the new
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construction measures, new conservation
measures were being introduced to better manage
fish stocks.  Entry into the lobster industry was
limited, not anybody could just go into lobsters.
Harvest capacity was being restricted.  At the
same time, the processing capacity was being
expanded and--not debate that one, but as a
consequence, the majority of Prince Edward Island
seafood plants were operating at a level not
exceeding 30 - 40 per cent of capacity.  In some
cases, it was much less than that.  And this
resulted in a serious overcapitalization given the
level of plant throughput and the level of product
development and marketing.

The situation was made worse in the early 1990s
following the crisis that occurred in the ground
fishery with the collapse of groundfish stocks, plant
operators across the region turned to other
species to process.  We know the many plants in
areas such as Cape Breton and New Brunswick
that have been processing groundfish and other
species now turned to processing lobster.  This
only intensified the already overcapacity which
existed throughout the region.  It also intensified
competition.  

In order for those many plants to survive, many on
extremely low margins, there was a major
downward pressure on market prices received by
these processors.  While lobster fishermen were
selling them to market, that was extremely
competitive on the shore, processors were not
working together to gain a greater advantage in
the marketplace.  In fact, we know they were
undercutting one another in desperate measures
to move product out of inventory or to stay in
margins with the bank and to stay alive.  

The marketplace was not providing adequate
returns for processors or fishermen and the result
was an industry with declining prospects and
opportunities.  Simply put, the system was not
working and government’s provided, I would say,
band-aid ad hoc assistance and supports in a futile
attempt to keep the industry alive.  

Now other developments began to evolve which
had serious impacts on Prince Edward Island’s
mainly small local processors.  Significant
consolidation began to take place and we saw the
rise of companies such as National Sea Products,
Clearwater and Fisheries  Products International.
Those companies, too, some of at least, went

through bankruptcies and consolidations and
takeovers and changing of owners.  But in the
main, they were larger.  They had more
efficiencies.  They had clout in the marketplace
and they posed a significant threat to
independently owned processors in this province
and throughout the region.  

By the mid-1990s as well, we saw increasing
competition from some of our larger New
Brunswick processors.  One result was that more
and more raw product was leaving the province for
processing elsewhere and that meant that the
processing sector on the Island was already
operating with excess capacity, was losing more
and more raw product.  In 1996, for example,
about 28 per cent of lobsters were leaving the
province for processing.  In 1997, that increased
by about ten per cent to around 38 per cent going
off Island, further threatening the viability of
processors and representing the loss of jobs and
other economic activity.  The increased
competition for raw supply was of benefit to
fishermen who realized higher prices in the short
term.  However, it also meant that over the longer
term, they would fail to realize the potential for
even higher prices because processors
themselves were failing to maximize their returns
in the marketplace.  

In the early 1990s, the province, the provincial
government responded to these circumstances.
Major investments were made in the Royal Star
processing plant in Tignish and a brand new plant,
even though overcapacity existed, in the brand
new Babineau plant in Souris.  Between 1995 and
1996, the Callbeck government provided 11.3
million to the industry in the form of grants.  This
came after the Joe Ghiz government wrote off over
13.6 million between 1990 and 1993, and those
expenditures combined over six years were
equivalent, interestingly enough, to the Polar
losses.

Now despite such ongoing public investments in
the industry, the pressures of sharply reduced
profit margins and the perception of an unlevel
playing field along with increasing competition for
raw material, left a number of processors just
barely surviving.  The financial feasibility of the
sector continued to lag behind the rest of the
manufacturing industry.  According to a study
carried out in 1999, the profit margin in the fish
processing  sector averaged less than one per
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cent in the years between 1980 and 1991.  In fact,
the profit margin was estimated at a minuscule .58
per cent compared to 3.7 per cent for food
manufacturing as a whole and seven per cent for
all manufacturing.

In 1990, the return in equity for the fish processing
sector was just 1.02 per cent compared to 12.5 per
cent in food manufacturing and 11 per cent for all
manufacturing.  Return assets is equally dismal,
just .36 per cent in fish processing compared to
2.7 per cent in food processing.  So Mr. Chairman,
you don’t have to be a rocket scientist to see why
many of our fish processing plants were losing
money.

Obviously, such low returns on equity and assets
along with razor thin profit margins did little to
encourage innovation, more research and
development and new investment.  It’s a situation
which had been ongoing for years and that is why
when we came to office, one of our priorities was
to strength the financial capacity of this industry to
make it more self sufficient and to eventually end
the cycle of government handouts, bailouts and
other forms of support and assistance.  

This was the situation the industry faced when we
came into office.  There was no clear direction and
if there was a strategic plan, we certainly were not
made aware of it, there was little research and
development, the competitive position of many
plants had eroded to the point they were going to
close.  Fishermen were going to realize better
returns from the marketplace were failing, sorry,
fishermen were failing to realize better returns and
the future was clouded with uncertainty.  

Many processors who had experienced ups and
downs over the years were barely surviving.  They
were telling me and members of my government
that they had enough, that they were ready to
close their plants.  In short, the lobster processing
sector aside from several plants, faced imminent
collapse and that would have meant a loss of jobs
in many rural communities.  In fact, we had already
seen a number of plants close across the province
and the loss of  value added opportunities and the
spinoff benefits that were provided would be lost.

As a government, we could of stood by and
watched more of this failure take place.  We could
have watched economic opportunities and jobs
and investments go to neighbouring provinces like

New Brunswick and Nova Scotia.  We could have
given up on the importance of maintaining some
control over (indistinct) economic sector.  But Mr.
Chairman and members of the committee, as a
government we were not prepared at that point to
preside over the collapse and liquidation of the
processing industry, or the loss of jobs and
opportunities in rural communities and the well
being of fishers.  As a government, we believed we
had a fundamental responsibility to help protect
processors and fishermen and plant workers as
previous governments had attempted and this is
the course of action we chose to take.  
Well I think it’s important to, just briefly, underline
the importance of the fish processing sector to the
province because to have an appreciation to what
it would have meant to the province’s people a
collapse, it’s important.  At the same time, it will
put a little bit better perspective on things.

The fishery, as a whole, contributes $350 million
annually to the Island economy and is a key factor
in its continued growth and prospects.  The
processing side is essential to that performance.
You can’t sell all the lobsters on the fresh market.
It’s a labour intensive industry that provides jobs
for approximately 2,500 Islanders in the rural
communities that have limited employment
opportunities and we recognize how important
those jobs are to people and to the communities in
which they live and that was most evident last
spring in those communities where plants were not
re-opening.  The impact of the loss of jobs is
perhaps nowhere more evident than the
devastating loss of 400 jobs at Usen Fisheries in
Souris in the early 1990s, and I ask members of
this committee to consider the impact of similar job
losses in other communities across Prince Edward
Island if we simply stood back and let it happen.
That we were unwilling to do.  

Now overall, employment in the fish processing
industry accounts for approximately five per cent of
the total employment in the province.  The
estimated total income for these jobs  is upwards
of 50 million annually and this does not include the
level of payments through EI programs.

The processing plants in this province export their
products to a number of major markets - the US,
Europe and Japan, as well as other (Indistinct).
Throughout the 1990s, the total value of fish
processing shipments rose from about 120 million
to more than 200 million.  Growth in the value of
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seafood products has depended largely on
products for process markets.  Without a strong
competitive and export oriented fish processing
industry in the province, we would not experience
the benefits of the export market.  Without a strong
growing processing sector, the market for raw
products would be seriously depressed and quite
simply, we could not market all our lobsters, as I
said, on the fresh market.  We need processing.
We’ll continue to work to identify new products and
processes.  Prince Edward Island processors are
working hard to create a number of new value
added products for international markets and that
is the key to creating new and expanding markets
for processing companies and the fishermen. 

The fish processing sector accounts for about 20
per cent of total manufacturing activity in the
province.   It also creates major spinoff benefits to
the economy.  Overall, it’s estimated the multiplier
effect of the fish processing industry is more than
four times.  The multiplier effect can be compared
to the triple effect of expanding in one sector on
other sectors throughout the economy.  

In other words, for every one dollar spent in the
processing industry, more than four dollars is
generated in additional economic activity and that
shows up in retail spending, in construction in the
service sector and transportation and so on.
Obviously, the impacts are significant and a
strengthened seafood processing industry will
make an even greater contribution to the economy.

The fish processing industry is part of a larger
sphere of economic activity in the province.  In
2002, the Department of Fisheries and Oceans in
cooperation with our provincial fisheries
department, completed a study on the Value of the
Ocean Sector to Prince Edward Island.  And the
ocean sector is made up of those private and
public enterprises that either depend on the ocean
as a resource or uses it in their operations.  And
that study found that the direct impact of the ocean
sector on Prince Edward Island amounts to 247
million or ten per cent of the province’s GDP.
Once direct and induced effects associated with
the ocean sector take into account its share of
GDP rises to 17 per cent and that’s more than
$420 million in total GDP impact.  

The study also reported the ocean sector
accounted for just over 11 per cent of direct

household income on Prince Edward Island.
When you include the spinoffs, close to 20 per
cent of total household income.  So as you can
see, there is a major contribution to our Island
economy, to jobs, and particularly, to rural
communities.  

What is significant in that report is that in terms of
impact, fish processing, traditional fishing, and
aquaculture rank first, third, and fifth respectively.
When taken together, those three enterprises led
by processing accounted for over 60 per cent  of
the total impact on the ocean sector clearly giving
the interdependence between fish harvesting and
fish processing. The loss of one would have
serious impacts on the other and that’s why the
continuation of the strong fish processing sector is
so crucial to the future of this province and that’s
why we made its protection and its development a
high priority.

While I want to more specifically deal with the
involvement of the provincial government with
Polar Foods and as you know, Polar Foods was
established when six independent seafood
processing companies merged their assets and
their operations into a single, new entity. The six
companies before amalgamation collectively
achieved average sales - average sales I point out
- of about $80 million a year and accounted for
approximately 40 per cent of the province’s total
processed seafood sales.  They came together
because they recognized there were too many
small companies competing for a dwindling
resource. They were operating at about 30 per
cent of capacity. They lacked the ability to respond
to emerging global market forces and changing
consumer demand. They recognized the
companies by themselves could not remain viable
in the long run by simply sustaining their current
operations. The status quo was not an option.
They recognized that drastic action was needed if
the Prince Edward Island seafood processing
industry would survive. They came to the
conclusion that an amalgamation was the only way
to provide the corporate strength and flexibility that
was necessary to achieve long-term and profitable
results in the marketplace. They also concluded
that the amalgamated company would enhance
the strength, not just enhance strength in the
marketplace but it would protect jobs and
economic activity in their plants across the
province. 
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They, the companies asked government to support
this initiative. The result, Mr. Chairman, was a
company that had a financial package put together
totalling $65 million. That was made up of $14
million in equity from the owners, a $33 million line
of credit from a chartered bank, a repayable $7
million investment in preferred shares, and a $7
million term loan guarantee from the provincial
government. 

The plant real estate and equipment assets were
appraised respectively by Hardy Appraisals of
Halifax and Moss Equipment Evaluation Ltd. of
Toronto, who were both highly recommended as
leading professionals in their field. 

The company began operations in 1988 with the
goal of increasing its revenues and gross margins
through improved marketing and reduced costs
through specialization, higher throughput, and
operational efficiencies, and investment in
research and development of value-added
products.

Over the first three years of its operations, the
company grew significantly and outperformed its
original business plan. Between 1998 and 1999,
for example, Polar increased its purchase of Island
lobster by some 23 per cent, going from 6.1 million
pounds in 1998 to 7.5 million pounds in 1999. By
1999 these purchases totaled some $47 million
and accounted for almost 48 per cent of all
lobsters landed in the province. Polar was also
able to increase its off-Island purchases of raw
product by a whopping 114 per cent from 1998 to
1999. For example, in 1998 it purchased 2.8
million pounds of lobster from fishermen in Maine,
New Brunswick, and Nova Scotia.  In 1999 those
purchases reached a total of 6 million pounds and
helped to boost a value-added processing activity
here in the province. There was a major increase
in the purchase of groundfish as well and other
species for processing. 

The result of this increased activity had a twofold
impact; one was an immediate increase in the
length of time the plants were open. That could
certainly be seen in communities like mine and an
additional five weeks in 1999 and, as well, an
increase in the level of processing activity. This led
to an increase in the amount of wages and
benefits paid to plant workers. Between 1998 and
99, gross labour dollars increased by close to 37
per cent, going from $8.7 million to almost $12

million. The direct and indirect benefits translated
into an additional $28.4 million in economic activity
throughout the province each year.

The original business plan projected total sales of
$100 million after three years. The company also
exceeded that goal. Prior to amalgamation, the
sales of the individual companies were $65 million,
averaged 80, as I said a moment ago. But by
1999, Polar had total sales of more than $110
million, an increase of 40 per cent and sales did
grow larger. There’s also evidence the new
amalgamated company had a positive impact on
lobster prices following its establishment. As I said
earlier, fishers depend on a strong company that’s
able to achieve high returns in the marketplace. In
the spring of 1997, the minimum price of canners,
canner lobsters was $3.25 a pound. In the spring
of 1999, the minimum price had increased to $4 a
pound. While it’s difficult to establish an exact
relationship, there’s no doubt that the presence of
Polar did have an impact on lobster prices in the
province. During the years it operated, Polar
accounted for between 35 per cent and 48 per
cent of all lobsters landed in Prince Edward Island.

In short, the company had an immediate positive
impact on jobs and wages and on lobster prices. It
captured markets that had not been entered
before. It strengthened its competitive position
within the region in general and by the year 2000,
the company turned a small profit. Polar Foods
continued to improve its operating results, at least
on the sales side. They grew from $66 million to as
high as $158 million annually and the payroll
reached about $14 million. The estimated direct
annual provincial revenues as a result of the
operations of Polar were about $2.8 million. 

Now the Auditor has detailed government’s
increased involvement in the company between
1998 and 2003 and during that time, the provincial
government extended loan guarantees and
increased its investment. Some of the reasons for
this included such things as the adverse impacts
on the marketplace of 911, September 11, 2001,
which saw a lot of the restaurant business and so
on basically close in key out U.S. cities and
severely depress the market. SARS had a similar
implication; certainly it reeked havoc on places like
Toronto, which is a major market for us, and again,
the restaurant trade shut down. Lobsters could not,
were not moving into that market. And of course,
a weak U.S. dollar has impacted the performance,
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not just to Polar but all exporting companies. 

Despite our optimism and our best efforts and
partial guarantees in working capital, by February
of 2004, the Bank of Nova Scotia lost confidence
in Polar and its business plan and on February 16th

was demanding repayment. It was then highly
likely that the banks would take steps to put the
company into receivership and that is when the
provincial government decided to purchase the
debt from the Bank of Nova Scotia along with
some other liabilities for a total cost of about $51.5
million. We determined that taking over those
obligations would give us greater control over the
sale of assets and we would ensure that at least
some of the plants could open for the spring
lobster season in May. We were very concerned
that a drawn out receivership process would have
very few plants operating and preside over chaos
in the industry. 

As you know, the provincial government was able
to sell two plants and other assets to Ocean
Choice in early 2004 for some $17 million. Ocean
Choice has had a good first year and continues to
provide employment to plant workers and a market
for fishermen for their products. It’s also invested
heavily in modern equipment. It enjoys a strong,
competitive position in the marketplace and
continues to investigate new market and product
opportunities. 

The closure of some plants, while difficult, has
helped to address the problem of overcapacity in
the industry and I share the concerns of those who
have seen disruption in their jobs and in their
communities and, of course, attended many
meetings of protest over those closures but this
government continued to work hard to ensure that
meaningful investment and employment
opportunities would be pursued in those rural
communities across P.E.I. 

I’m now convinced that the seafood processing
industry is stronger and more resilient than it was
in 1998 and our actions avoided a very serious
loss of economic activity in the province.  Through
much of this debate, a great deal of attention has
been focused on the losses and that’s
understandable and we need to recognize and
deal with that fact. I don’t mean to overshadow it;
however, in my view, there has been too little
attention focused on the gains and on the benefits.
It is not recognized, for example, that throughout

the period of its operations, Polar Foods generated
a great deal of economic activity which would not
have otherwise taken place: sale of processed
products of up to $158 million annually, a payroll of
$14 million annually, purchase of raw materials of
fishermen upwards of $48 million annually, the
import of raw products of value-added processing
in this province, and new initiatives and product
development, establish and new expand markets
and other direct benefits from one end of the
province to the other. It is estimated that the
contribution of the operations of Polar Foods to
provincial revenues are actually more than $80
million. Now that revenue, Mr. Chairman, goes a
long way to help offset the losses that have been
incurred. It doesn’t justify the losses but it helps to
put it into perspective. That would not have
happened if the provincial government had not
become involved in 1998 and help save an
industry that was on the verge of collapse. 

As well, the provincial government has been able
to protect the interests of fishermen and plant
workers, retained a skilled and experienced
workforce. People did not leave the processing
workforce to go into other jobs. Returns to
fishermen and markets for their products have
been strengthened. We’ve been able to secure a
better future for fish processing in the province.

Mr. Chairman and members of the committee, the
province regrets the losses that have been
incurred. I can assure you, however, that from the
beginning that my colleagues and I acted in good
faith with the best interests of the province in mind.
And today I can tell you that the government I lead
will continue to take strong action to protect and
defend the province’s interests to the best of its
ability and I thank you for enabling me to provide
that statement, and I’d be happy to deal with
questions from members. 

Thank you Mr. Chairman.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Thank you, Mr.
Premier.

We’ll start with everybody probably start around
the table, Robert there in five minutes probably.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Okay.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): And then we’ll
continue on and continue back. 
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Honourable Robert Ghiz (L):   Perfect, thank you,
Mr. Premier. That was quite the presentation you
made on the justification of why you entered into
the Polar Foods deal but at this committee now
what we’re studying is the Auditor General’s
report. It’s basically a scathing 70-page report on
the lack of accountability that your government
demonstrated right from the opening day of this
whole file and I think that in this report it talks
about ignoring rules, avoiding responsibility, and
abusing the system that should be in place to
protect taxpayers’ dollars. At the end of the day,
what do we have right now? We have at least $31
million lost. We have hundreds of Islanders out of
work and for the first time, I believe, in the history
of the province, we have an Auditor General
calling for a forensic audit involving a corporation
and business deals that were dealing with
government. 

I believe that Islanders deserve to hear from the
shareholders. I believe they deserve to hear from
the bureaucrats and I don’t believe in your
presentation that you dealt with all of the issues in
this Auditor General’s report and I went through
and just did a quick synopsis, Mr. Premier, and in
this report government rules and regulations have
been broken. And in this report, it mentions 31
times in the Auditor General’s report that rules and
regulations were broken. I’m sure if you’ve read it,
you’ve noticed it yourself. 

Mr. Premier, also in the report, there’s nine
mentions. The Auditor General mentions nine
times in the report ranging from section 4.6 to
section 11.7 of information that was withheld to the
Auditor General so there’s still information that’s
going missing. 

So my question - it’s an easy question for you at
the beginning - with respect to 70 pages that the
Auditor General is very critical of the government’s
handling of this and basically says the government
was not accountable right from the beginning of
this file and so many questions that remain
unanswered, why so few were given so much and
why government was not there to protect the
taxpayers’ dollars at the end of the day. I want to
know. Are you going to reverse your decision and
call for a public inquiry as soon as possible?

Hon. Premier Binns: Mr. Chairman, I thank the
Leader of the Opposition for his question, seem to
be several questions in there. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): One question.

Hon. Premier Binns: Certainly, I’ll deal with the
question of whether it be a public inquiry. First, I
said from the outset that I felt that the Auditor
General could review this matter, determine
shortcomings, whether the interests of PEI were
considered, look at the losses, et cetera. He has
completed that round. He has suggested that there
be further analysis of the FPI transaction, in
particular, the last year or so of the operations of
the company.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): That BDI approved.

Hon. Premier Binns: That BDI approved and we
have agreed with that. In fact, we have assured
them that we will cooperate in every way possible
for that to take place and it would be our view that
that process should continue and we will support
it. It’s not our view that a public inquiry would
necessarily be beneficial and, as a result, we will
proceed with a course of action that we’re on.  

Now, you know, you did make reference to a
number of things to having the numbers wrong.
Well, you’ve had lots of numbers wrong yourself.
At one point, you suggested that the losses were
$70 million.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): I said the Auditor
General actually. The Auditor General points that
out.

Hon. Premier Binns: And I’m not arguing with that
but you suggest the losses here might have been
$70 million at one point in time; the Auditor
General says 31 or thereabouts.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): I said the Auditor
General confirmed the $70 million if you wanted to
come to those hearings that day but you didn’t
come but anyway, I’m just -

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, you know, 70, 58, 54.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Exactly.  It’s too
money.

Hon. Premier Binns: But the point is -

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): If you could let the
Premier speak and then rebuff.
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Hon. Premier Binns:  - it’s quite a bit different
than 31.  Government also had a responsibility to
the people of Prince Edward Island to protect jobs.
You know, there are probably in the vicinity of
2500 jobs in the fish processing sector in this
province.  A lot of those were at risk.  You,
yourself, have gone into these communities where
jobs have been lost and said the plant should re-
open. Government should be supporting these
communities and so, you know, it’s not as clear-cut
as just saying just looking at it from a financial
perspective.  If it was that clear-cut, previous
governments wouldn’t have invested in this
industry, wouldn’t have lost money, wouldn’t have
had write-offs, wouldn’t have given grants.  

In terms of withholding information, the honourable
member knows that not all of that was because of
provincial rules and regulations.  Some of it, for
example, T-4 slips that were not provided to the
Auditor General because of privacy legislation
that’s under the jurisdiction of the Government of
Canada. My understanding is that the receiver is
taking to - and we’re supporting this - to Revenue
Canada and others to see whether the information
can be released but it’s not us holding it back and
we’d be happy to see this provided as long as
privacy matters are not violated somehow through
this examination.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Now that’s an
interesting response. You should perhaps read up
on the Hansards of this committee and in no way
did I say all the fish plants on Prince Edward Island
(Indistinct) government help. I said we should let
the market dictate and I believe that we are in a
capital society and that should happen.

But if you want to turn to page 23 in the Auditor
General’s report, Mr. Premier, I believe that part of
the problem with Polar Foods and why we got to
where we are today is that there was too much
done in secrecy.  There was too much government
approval going on in secrecy.  There was too
much lack of accountability going on in secrecy.
And in the summer of 2003, you’ll recall a few
weeks before the provincial election, which you
weren’t sure you were calling at the time, which I
find that quite hard to believe, but six weeks before
you guaranteed another $14 million from the
province which at that time increased our exposure
from $19 million to $33 million.

Now remember I asked you in the House on April

6, 2004, about that $14 million and you said: And
so it wasn’t like it was $14 million new dollars.  But
in fact, as you can see from this, it was $14 million
new dollars. It was increasing our exposure and to
me that goes just to prove that government was
trying to cloak and dagger. Yourself and the
ministers weren’t being forthcoming with all the
information on that and the Auditor General
verifies this in this report, Mr. Premier, as you
know, by saying that government should no longer
be approving money behind closed doors without
it going through for a special warrant and the
provincial taxpayers knowing about it.  

So my question to you has to do with this extra
$14 million that was guaranteed six weeks before
a provincial election in which you already indicated
to me that it wasn’t new money but now we know
that it is new money because the Auditor General
was nice enough to lay it all out for us. Why did
you choose to do this in secrecy?  Why couldn’t
you be honest with Islanders six weeks before an
election that Polar Foods needed an additional $14
million?  You knew already that Polar Foods was
in trouble and I was amazed that you would send
out your Provincial Treasurer to try and say that
they didn’t know anything in 2003 when you know
full well that your government had to call in Ernst
& Young in 2002. You asked for a seat on the
board of directors of Polar Foods in 2002 so you
knew that there was a lot of problems plus all
along, right from the beginning, the responsibility
of Polar Foods for their guaranteed money was not
there and you were overlooking it. 

So you knew all along that there was a problem
with Polar Foods so why did you guarantee the
extra $14 million six weeks before a provincial
election in secrecy?  Did you choose to do it for
your own political interests over and above the
interests of Islanders?

Honourable Premier Binns: No. Two things I
want to point out and as I’ve said before when this
matter has come up, government had guarantees
on term loans and working capital in previous
years.  And in each of those years, those term
loans expired and were not carried forward or
added to but new ones were put in place. For
example, in 2001 we had $14 million in term loans
and working capital guarantees.  Those expired in
2002.  We had $14 thousand, I think it was, in
similar loan guarantees, both in working capital
and a term loan so those expired. And so in 2003,
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we had a $12 million term loan guarantee and this
was not unusual.  It occurred every year from the
start, at least from 1999 onward where we put
working capital guarantees in place.  We actually
had term loan guarantees in place right from the
outset so there was nothing new about that at all.
What was going on in 2003 is that FPI, who had
become the marketer for the company, felt that
prices in the marketplace were too low.  To sell
into a marketplace at those low prices guaranteed
even bigger losses.  

Now the problem was withholding the product from
the marketplace, there was no cash flow coming
and so the company was out of margin with the
bank but the company was processing product.  It
was buying a large volume of lobsters.  It was
expecting that prices would improve and that if you
fed the market over time as opposed to pushing
product unto the market all at once that they would
receive much more favourable prices and
government accepted that rationale that it wasn’t
appropriate to be dumping product unto a low
market, a low price market that would cause the
company surely to lose money that it might be able
to recoup later on and so we provided the
guarantee with that thought in mind that if
prospects of realizing a profit are better by holding
unto the product and the bank wasn’t willing to
provide additional money at that time.  

That wasn’t unusual for the bank. We’d been there
before with the banks.  They don’t like to get out of
margin but government has to look at this.  We felt
we had to look at it in terms, not just whether the
company’s on a margin but what would happen if
they were allowed to go to margin and the bank
put them into receivership, for example, which
could have happened in previous years too by
being on a margin. If that had happened, we would
have had plant workers all across the province
going home without paychecks.  We would have
fishermen not being paid for their lobsters.  We
would have had a rural sector in crisis so this was
not new. 

It was more money, yes, but the circumstances
were different.  The company had increased its
buy of lobsters substantially.  It was buying, you
know, millions of extra pounds of lobster.  It was
employing hundreds of extra workers because it
had ramped up activities and so it was a bigger
player with more expenses.  I can tell you and
you’ve already pointed out that the amount was

greater but the general process was the same.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): You didn’t answer.
Why was it done in secret?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well, it wasn’t done
in secret.  Well, there was no intention for it to be
done in secret.  It had been done on a similar
basis in the past.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Well, no, but it was
done in secret.  There’s two ways to approve
money and, basically, this way was done without
the general public knowing about it, was it not?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well, we had
decisions in council in previous years similar to this
one.  In that sense, it was no different than
previous transactions on at least two other
occasions.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Do you think it’s
okay to approve $14 million without Island
taxpayers knowing about it.

Honourable Premier Binns: It should have been
done through an Order-in-Council and -

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): So you were wrong.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well, it had been
done in the past through decisions in council and
that was and we felt it had a precedent and so in
that respect was not out of order but with the
ref lect ion on the Auditor General ’s
recommendations, we have certainly do it through
Order-in-Council if we had it to do over again.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Well, exactly, so
you were wrong. Do I have time for one more?

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): I’ll come back to you
again.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Thank you, Mr. Premier, for
appearing here today and enlightening us on the
whole operation of Polar and how it started and
why it got the way it did.

I guess a couple of questions I have for the
Premier is and one of my biggest concerns is why
was there no personal guarantees in this
procedure and is this common practice with
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government when you’re doing business with big
corporations that no personal guarantees are
involved or why was there no personal guarantees
on this account?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well, it is a good
question.  I know the auditor suggests there should
have been personal guarantees and we would
have liked to have personal guarantees.  In fact,
we’d looked for personal guarantees.  The reality
is the personal guarantees had not generally been
obtained in this industry.  When Co-Ops went
through expansions, whether it was Royal Star or
North Lake, the shareholders did not provide
personal guarantees even when operating capital
was guaranteed or when grants or not - It wouldn’t
matter, wouldn’t apply to grants - but when
financing was available for expansion of capital,
capital assets and the reality is that there wouldn’t
have been a deal if personal guarantees had of
been a requirement or if we had stuck with that
request.  Now we kept asking for it in the hope that
we would secure personal guarantees but it wasn’t
widely practised in the industry.  The owners felt
that they had a lot at risk and I guess they just
weren’t prepared to go there.  The alternative was
to let the industry die.

Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess another thing that we
heard that government forced these plant owners
to amalgamate and that government went to these
plant owners and telling them they had to
amalgamate and to form Polar.  Now I guess what
I want to know is: Did government go to these
plant owners and ask them to amalgamate or did
these plant owners come to government with a
proposal for amalgamation to form Polar?  How did
this take place?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well, I think probably
a lot of things were going on but, obviously, and if
it’s not obvious, the industry asked government to
consider this amalgamation, consider helping it
come about.  And the reason for that was, as I’ve
indicated in the opening remarks I’ve given, that
the industry continued to be in trouble despite the
fact that there’d be massive grants and write-offs
by previous government and not just those
governments.  It goes back as far as I can
remember that this industry still wasn’t making any
money.  Margins of less than one per cent
suggests that a lot of them were losing money. 

I mean we’d seen a number of plants go out of

business across PEI. The smaller canneries were
folding up because they were losing money.  A
small co-op in my district basically not processing
lobster - Why? Because they couldn’t make any
money doing it so they would sell that lobster to
another larger processor or sell it on the fresh
market.  Many people with large processing
operations in the province, lots of capacity, were
selling to other bigger processors who had a little
bit of margin when they didn’t or they were selling
to the fresh market.  

So, you know, at one per cent average, obviously
some were losing money and I guess the reality
was that, you know, that was the situation those
plants were faced with.  That’s why they came to
government and said: We can build a better
model.  And they presented a business plan to us
that said that through consolidation, we can be
stronger.  We can service customers we couldn’t
provide in the past and I, you know, I recall hearing
things like - oh, one of the restaurant chains in the
U.S. has lobster in the name, “Red Lobster.” “Red
Lobster” is a big buyer and they want to deal with
one company. They don’t want to deal with a
whole bunch of different suppliers.  They want
consistency of product.  They want it at the same
price for the whole year. 

They want it at the same price for the whole year.
They want it all the same size.  They want to know
that it’s there when they depend on it.  They will
pay one price but they will not deal with individual
companies but they will deal with a larger unit like
Polar that can supply them throughout the year at
consistent prices, consistent quality, consistent
size, all that sort of thing; and that was just one of
many examples where they said they could be
more efficient.  They said they could get better
prices from their packagers, people that supply
packaging if they were buying as one unit instead
of six. They said they could deal with their
suppliers for things like oil or propane or nitrogen
or whatever they were buying for operations if they
were speaking as one group and so there was
some economies of scale and they argued that
with that, it would help make them profitable. 

Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess I just have one more
question I’d like to ask and this is kind of - I think
this is a difficult one but I think it’s one that’s got to
be asked.  What do we say to the communities of
Gaspereaux, Howards Cove, Anglo, Morell, who
lost plants because of this failure and no
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processing licenses for those communities?  What
do we say to them and what do we do to change
this situation?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, this was obviously a
tough one and we’ve said it.  We’ve said that those
lobster processing licenses had to go and I’ll tell
you it wasn’t easy.  The company that did the most
processing or the plant that did the most
processing in the whole operations pre Polar
outside of the co-ops was the Wendell Graham
plant in Gaspereaux.  That plant happens to be in
my riding.  It probably issued T-4 slips for
something like 250, maybe more people per year.
Did I want to see that kind of a failure in the
district?  Did I want to see that plant stop
operations?  Obviously not, but the reality was that
at the end of the day when new proposals came in,
those who did come in said they weren’t interested
if we were going to keep all those other plants
going and they just wanted to operate the biggest
ones. They wanted the other lobster licenses
cancelled or they wouldn’t come in either and that
would have been chaos in our view.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Alright.  Dave.

Dr. McKenna (PC): I have a couple of quick
questions, Mr. Premier.  The first question I have
is what you now know today, knowing the state of
injury at the time with the processing industry
starting to fail, would you proceed the same way
today as you did back then knowing the outcome
of Polar Foods? 

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, I’m sure we would
have done some things a little bit differently.  I
think though that we would have been persuaded.
I really believe we still would have been persuaded
that Polar, as an entity, had the potential to pull
this sector ahead without losing money.  I mean
the business plan certainly suggested that.  We
had the - You know, the owners of these plants,
even though some of them were not making
money in the last years, had the best knowledge of
the lobster industry of anybody in North America
probably.  They should, you know, collectively their
knowledge and so on of not just operations in their
plants but of the marketplace and so on should
have been as good as anybody’s.  And by bringing
them together instead of fighting each other, we
felt would help them survive.  You know, what
often happened - and I heard many of them talk
about this over the years - was that you’d have a

plant that was doing okay and they were putting
product in inventory and supplying the market at
what they thought was a fair price. 

Well, then one of the guys down the road, who the
bank happened to be pressing for payment of his
loans and needed money for working capital, in
order to sell, he’d drop the price and then the
buyer would think: Well, you know, I’ve got a better
price here.  Well, maybe I’ll try another plant and
I’ll go to the third guy.  And the bank was pressing
him too so he’d drop the price again and so even
for the successful company, that put him in an
awful bind.  Was he going to lose his markets
because he wouldn’t sell at as low a price or what
was he going to do?  And so these guys said:
Look, by working together, we will have more
strength in the marketplace.  We’ll be able to
negotiate with buyers on a stronger basis.  They
won’t be able to pick us off one after the other.  

Dr. McKenna (PC): Okay.  A question I want to
follow up on the Opposition Leader.  He said
there’s hundreds of Islanders have lost work
because of the Polar Food collapse.  Now my
understanding is that some of these, the new
company is actually looking for workers today.  Is
that true or is it something I’m -

Hon. Premier Binns: Sorry.  The company is -

Dr. McKenna (PC): Like Ocean Choice is still
looking for workers out there today, is that correct,
or in the last, even especially during the lobster
season?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, I believe they’re taking
names right now for workers.  It’s my
understanding that at least last week they were
busing people into Beach Point from Souris, I think
running two buses down, to get enough workers to
run the line and, yes, they’re - They have been
looking for workers.  They were certainly very
anxious for workers in Souris in the fall when a lot
of the Newfoundland workers went home and this
is anecdotal information but I’m told that, you
know, they were in quite a jam when that
happened because they had much, a lot of work to
do and not enough workers to do it.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Wayne.

Wayne Collins (PC): Thank you very much, Mr.
Chair.
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Mr. Premier, I want to thank you very much for
coming in here today and being so open and it is
a good demonstration, I believe, of accountability
to the people.  There have been, I know, in the
past over the years many major issues in which
government has been involved, whether it was
Abegweit Potatoes, McCain & Hughes deal,
Perfection Foods, whatever; and I didn’t see the
Premier of the day voluntarily come into Public
Accounts and want to talk about some of those
things.  So you’re not hiding in a tunnel here today,
sir, and I appreciate your presence.

But beyond that, Mr. Premier, I’d like to ask you.
You’ve read the Auditor General’s Report and I’m
sure you’ve re-read it and you’ve seen, as the
Leader of the Opposition has mentioned numerous
citations of government mishandling the file, not
monitoring the file, not doing proper due diligence
in some cases, not following procedures.  When
you tally them all up, and I believe the member
opposite has tallied them all up, what does that
suggest to you, as Premier, of the job that your
government is doing?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, it tells me that on one
hand, we need to do a better job of ensuring that
the paperwork is properly completed and so on;
but I can tell you, in many instances, that
government was well aware or made decisions
that were not documented in the Auditor General’s
report.  For example, in relation to the decision to
buy out the bank for a price that was negotiated at
$51.5 million, the Auditor General reports that
there was not a Cabinet agreement to do that.
That’s not the exact wording.  I’m not looking at the
text but I can tell you that I was in the Cabinet
room when they made that decision that we would
go ahead with that and so there was a conscious
decision by the Cabinet to make that expenditure
at that time.  

Other things were similar.  Unfortunately, they
weren’t documented.  Why wasn’t that one
documented?  It should have been.  Unfortunately,
the budget Cabinet process was going on at that
time.  We were having an evening meeting of the
budget Cabinet.  The Clerk of the Executive
Council had gone home for the day because what
we were doing in the main was looking at budget
projections for the upcoming year and it was not
necessary for the Clerk to be there for that
particular discussion.  But our officials had
obviously been working on this file extensively and

that evening came to us to make a final decision
on something we’d been considering before that
evening and we made the decision.  

Now, the Clerk wasn’t there to record the decision
and it wasn’t recorded the next day.  That was a
mistake but Executive Council certainly approved
the decision.  

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Richard.

Richard Brown (L): You mentioned that a
strategic plan for the industry, there was never
one.  Do you have one ready?  Do you have one
now that you can table in this House, this
committee?

Hon. Premier Binns: No.

Richard Brown (L): Because you made quite an
accusation there that other governments didn’t
have a strategic plan and that we have one.  Do
you have one?

Hon. Premier Binns: No.  I didn’t say we have
one but I think what has happened has led to a
different situation today than existed in 1998 or in
1990 or in 1980 or 1970.  The situation we have
today is one where government is essentially out
of financing for the lobster processing industry.  It’s
the first time I can remember that government
wasn’t either providing, you know, working capital
loans or new equipment loans to fish processing
businesses.  

This year, any financial support we’re giving the
industry is something that was set up in earlier
years but there’s been no expansion of that and
government has made it clear that we’re out of the
business.  So in that sense, I think the industry has
somewhat turned the corner.  I believe we now
have some successful co-ops who this year - keep
our fingers crossed - appear to be making a small
profit and Ocean Choice appears to be doing well.
We don’t have access to their records but they
appear to be continuing with expansions and so on
at the present time.

Richard Brown (L): So what you’re telling the
House or this committee today is there is no
financial support for the industry this year
whatsoever.

Hon. Premier Binns: There’s no additional
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financial support to the lobster processing sector.

Richard Brown (L): And how much is that going
to be this year then in terms of - 

Hon. Premier Binns: I, I wouldn’t have - 

Richard Brown (L): What are you going to give
North Lake loan guarantee?

Hon. Premier Binns: It would be based on
previous year’s commitment.  I don’t have that
number here but we’ve given financial guarantee
to North Lake in the past and that will still exist this
year.

Richard Brown (L): Will they all be Orders-in-
Council this year instead of Decision in Councils?
Will you be making them all public as one
decision?

Hon. Premier Binns: They, you know, I’d have to
check.  As far as I know, those would have been
done in accordance with the Treasury Board
guidelines and we will do that.

Richard Brown (L): You’ve said here a number of
times in your statement.  You said: We knew the
industry was in trouble.  You stated it several
times.  You worked hard on the file you said.  You,
basically, you ended up being the saviour of the
industry.  If it wasn’t for you we’d have no industry
today.  I question that statement.  I think that our
processing companies would have survived
without your help.  They would have went on to
have been better companies I think.  I think by you
saying that you come down from above and saved
everything is outrageous because, you know, the
industry is a good industry.  But you said the
industry was in trouble, but the auditor says here
you never kept a look at the books.  You never
asked for the books.  

If it was in such trouble and it was so much of the
economy depended on it, then why didn’t you or
your staff keep a closer eye on this file.  The
auditor says all the way through it there was no -
You know, you didn’t read the reports.  You didn’t
want reports.  So if it was such importance to the
economy and to the people of Prince Edward
Island, you think that you would have said on a
weekly basis or a monthly basis: Show me the
financial statements of the companies.  Show me
how they’re doing.  Show me their margins.

Hon. Premier Binns:  Well, the processing
industry was in trouble.  That was clear.  I mean
the shift that was taking place from lobster being
processed on PEI that grew from 28 per cent
exports to 38 per cent to the, as far as the
processing sector is a good indication of that.  New
Brunswick was buying more and more lobster
relative to PEI processing.  I’m not saying that - I
never said at any time that we wouldn’t have any
processing industry here on PEI but I believe we
would have had a far smaller processing industry
on PEI had we not intervened, had we not
intervened with the co-ops, had we not intervened
with private companies and the amalgamation of
Polar. 

You know, the co-ops, I mean you go back in
history.  They had their problems too.  Acadian,
had problems.  They were bailed out by
government in the past, not recently, but that did
happen.  Royal Star certainly could not operate
without provincial government guarantees and that
continued up to last year; North Lake - provincial
government guarantees.  The smaller co-ops that
were going out of business. I mean if they were
making money processing lobsters, they would
have been still processing lobsters, the small co-
ops, but they’re not because they just cannot
compete.

Richard Brown (L): But in the report on 310, page
8, there was a study, first of all, done in ‘94 saying
substantial overcapacity, substantial problem.
You, yourself, had a report done in 1997, which I
commend you for doing it, but in that report you
made a number of recommendations including an
establishment of a marketing consortium so what
do you think?  You indicated earlier today that
these people were competing against each other.
They had the banks on their backs and this, like
here’s the report that said you need a marketing
consortium.  You need something to bring these
people together under one roof, like all of them not
just a few.  What you chose to do was to set up six
companies as one and let the rest go on the
wayside.  Why didn’t you take this report’s
recommendation and set up a marketing
consortium?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, there are lots of
reasons for that.  I remember one time the
Government of PEI decided it would have a single
desk selling operation for rutabagas and so the
guy who was in charge of this single desk selling
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operation went to Boston and told the buyers:
Guess what?  You don’t buy from all these little
farmers on PEI any more.  You buy from me.  The
guy smiled and said: Thank you very much.
Guess what?  The phone didn’t ring after that.

Richard Brown (L): But you just said, Red
Lobster, Red Lobster wants one buyer.  They want
to go to one person.  They want a standard supply,
a standard price.  This marketing consortium
would have gave Red Lobster that standard price
and that standard supply.  That one person or that
one company - Even just for Red Lobster alone,
you could have sent this marketing consortium and
said, Here.  We’ll work with you, Red Lobster,
under this umbrella of companies or under this
company created by government in order to do it.
Even just for Red Lobster, why didn’t you do that?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, it’s never that simple
or that straightforward.  Obviously, the co-ops
operate under a different framework than private
companies that are owned by individuals or
shareholders.  You can’t just tell companies to co-
operate.  You can’t legislate them.  I suppose you
could legislate them to do that but, you know, this
is not a Communist regime here and we’re not in
the habit of doing that.  We could try to encourage
them to work together.  They came to us and
asked for help to work together so that’s why we
went that direction.

Richard Brown (L): So did you go to industry with
this proposal and say industry.

Hon. Premier Binns: Which year are you referring
to now?

Richard Brown (L): In 1997, a group of
processors approached government and
requested additional financing and indicated their
operations were at risk if financing could not be
obtained.  Government advised that it was looking
for an industry development, overall strategy to
address the problem rather than a piecemeal
approach to support the lobster processing.
Government engaged in independent consulting,
which is the Baker’s report - and I read it. It was a
pretty good report - to review the problems of the
industry and identify policy options.  

The report made a number of recommendations,
including the establishment of a marketing
consortium with a small task force of staff of the

Department of Fisheries and what was then
Enterprise PEI, identified the pros and cons of
establishing an industry-wide marketing and
procurement consortium.  So was that ever
presented to the industry as an option?  Did you
ever go out and get them all together and say: Are
we going to look at this?  Like I never heard of it.

Hon. Premier Binns: Yeah. There was a certain
amount of co-operation among some owners in
marketing initiatives.  The Market Development
Centre, I think it was, was an agency of the
provincial government at one time, supported
these firms to try and co-operatively market in the
past. I don’t know all the reasons why that wasn’t
totally successful but I guess in this instance it
wasn’t deemed that that was enough by itself so,
obviously, the plan became a bigger one.  It grew
from just looking at a renewed sort of common
marketing approach to the creation of Polar in
which you had one business plan that dealt with all
of the aspects of the business and that was, you
know, common purchasing, sales force marketing
approach, et cetera.

Richard Brown (L): A small task group of staff
from the Department of Fisheries and what was
Enterprise PEI identified the pros and cons,
established industry-wide marketing and
procurement consortium.  Could you table that
report that they gave you at that point in time,
what, why they said it was a good idea or why they
didn’t say it was bad idea?  Could you get us that
report?  Obviously, I know any task force in
government would have, if you ordered them to get
together and review this situation, they would have
tabled a report with you.  I don’t think they would
meet you in the elevator and just say: Oh, by the
way, we met and we don’t think it’s a good idea or
we think it’s a good idea.

Hon. Premier Binns: I have no problem that I
know of in releasing that.  Unless there’s some
item that I’m not aware of, I’ll see that you get that
report.

Richard Brown (L): Thank you.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Cletus Dunn.

Cletus Dunn (PC): First of all, Mr. Premier, I’d like
to thank you for asking for the audit in the first
place because this is an issue very close to our
hearts in West Prince area.  I guess I also want to
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recognize your compliance with recommendation
of the auditor and including the forensic audit.  

I guess my question is I was very astounded by
the information that you’ve shared with us today
regarding the profit margin in processing was
around one per cent and the return on investment
was less than one per cent.  I guess I’m
wondering, has any of that changed since Polar is
not in the picture anymore?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, it’s difficult for us to
know.  We do not have access to the books of the
private companies that are operating nor do we
have access to the books of the co-ops, but we’re
told that they’ve generally had a better season in
this current year; and if things hold that they could
well be profitable.  One of the big concerns I think
that they’re - I’m sure they’re all dealing with is the
value of the Canadian dollar today because I think
most of them when they did their business
projections probably started the year expected a
lower dollar than we currently have.  And I’d be
very surprised if that’s not causing some angst in
this sector as in others.  I would guess across
Canada today there are probably many firms going
through bankruptcy because of the change or the
strengthening of the Canadian dollar and that hurts
our exports.  So from all indications, they are doing
better.  The year is not over yet.

Cletus Dunn (PC): In regard to the two plants up
west; the one in Howards Cove and one in Anglo,
I know some efforts have been made.  I see some
announcements in the paper for some
development taking place in those plants.  What’s
your take on those two operations?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, we’re pleased that
there is an agreement in regards to Howards Cove
that Ocean Choice International has entered an
agreement with Wall Fish Mart or fish company,
Reuben Wall, to re-open that plant to do other
products.  The Minister of Development and his
people continue to work on a solution in regard to
Anglo.  There is a considerable amount of activity
on that file right now.  I don’t think it’s at an
announcement stage but there’s hope.  I hate to
get anyone’s hopes up too high but there’s
certainly progress being made and we’re hopeful
that we’ll see some operations again at Anglo.
Just when, I couldn’t say.  It’s not a done deal.  

Of course, there’s been a lot of activity at

Gaspereaux.  The plant is not doing lobsters but
there are new developments happening there in
regard to secondary mussel processing and so
some of these plants are coming back to life under
different scenarios.

Cletus Dunn (PC): FPI, were they an actual
partner?  Did they buy some of the original owners
out or how does FPI fit in the whole Polar scheme?

Hon. Premier Binns: Well, I might not be an
expert on that.  FPI was, as I mentioned earlier in
my remarks, one of probably the big three fish
processing marketing companies in the country
along with Clearwater and National Sea.  They
probably control the majority of sales of seafood
products.  Given their marketing strength, I think it
was felt by the Polar Group that they would be a
valuable addition to their operations, that they
would be able to help them move product at
stronger prices into the marketplace.  As a result,
they became involved in relationships which the
Auditor General is going to examine further or
have examined in regard to the share acquisition
that was made between Polar and other
shareholders, which was supported through the
FPI involvement so he’s looking at that particular
transaction.

Cletus Dunn (PC): That’s part of the forensic
audit.

Hon. Premier Binns: That’s right.

Cletus Dunn (PC): Thank you.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Wes MacAleer.

Wes MacAleer (PC): Mr. Premier, thank you for
coming. 

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):     I’m going to ask
questions, so take over chairman in a few minutes.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): You guys, I’m sure,
talked about this numerous times before.

Wes MacAleer (PC): I’m not sure we have or not.
Let’s get answered.  

Research through Hansard indicates that
numerous times the former Leader of the
Opposition, the chairman of this committee, asked
you about the financial position of Polar Foods and
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your response was that the company was up-to-
date in its payments.  The question I’ve got for
you: Were you misleading the public?

Hon. Premier Binns: When was that made?
Well, if I said it, I believed it to be the case.  I’d
have to - I don’t recall the timing of that but that’s
right.  I mean the province had provided loan
guarantees that enabled them to keep up-to-date
in their payments.  If they hadn’t, if we hadn’t
provided the guarantees, they probably would
have been on a margin and not up-to-date in their
payments.  The only way to stay in margin would
have been to hold off paying their suppliers and
those were the fishermen.  Those were other
creditors who provided things like packaging.
Those were workers so they stayed up-to-date
because government was, in part, guaranteeing it.

Now I think sometimes people think that all of their
financing was provided by the government; in fact,
it was not.  The initial deal, the banks put up $33
million or thereabouts that was unsecured, not
guaranteed by government and government
provided another $7 million initially, which helped
secure that.  I don’t think the bank would have put
up 33 if the government hadn’t put up seven but
the requirements the company had for working
capital grew, grew in a major way as they
increased, increased their buy and increased their
workforce.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): The bank have the
first mortgage on that?  They had first mortgage on
their loan, right?

Hon. Premier Binns: Yeah.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Yeah (Indistinct) .

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):   I’m going to let Jim
take over chairman for a while.  After I ask him to
go back over--I’ll let Jim handle the Chairmanship,
he might want to cut me off. 

Mr. MacAleer there’s a question I was going to ask
you Mr. Premier. All through the sessions of the
House, the spring 2000, the spring of 2001. There
is all kinds of information in front of me here,
during Question Period and I got them where you
said that everything was humpty-dumpty in this
deal. I won’t use your  exact words but I can
question you on the $6.5 million loan to Polar
Foods. 

Premier Binns said there is nothing wrong, nothing
extraordinary, the loan - he had every confidence
that it would be repaid. Mike Currie, the Minister of
Development, courtesy of a statement of the
Leader of the Opposition says - now that was May
11th, 2002, the 6.5, if I go back to Mike Currie and
his statement’s April 6th, 2002. I accused the
government in the House, the government using
money for popularity, for your own popularity.
Courtesy of statements made by the Leader of the
Opposition, Development Minister Mike Currie
said, government hasn’t been given any of Polar
Foods obligations and you went on to say at that
time in April 6th, 2002 that you had taken out a $7
million preferred shares but the shares have been
devalued or written down, certain amount on a
paper, but it’s accounts receivable only. They still
owe 7 million. Out of that 7 million, Mike Currie
assured us and you Mr. Premier in April 6th, 2002
how much did you get back out of the $7 million in
shares?

Honourable Premier Binns: As you know we
didn’t get any of it back. But when the deal was
first structured, it was structured such that the
preferred shares, had the company been
profitable, could of been converted in 2013 to
common shares and as a common shareholder
even as a preferred shareholder, you have an
expectation of profit. So government went into this
deal in the hope that the taxpayers could realize
some revenue downstream which wouldn’t happen
initially. We know in hindsight now that didn’t
happen. But the idea of the preferred shares
investment was so that if this venture would of
been successful, we too, would of earned some
revenues.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):  The question I have
for you Mr. Premier in April 12, you talked about
Royal Star, you talked about North Lake Co-op,
those businesses are up and running, your
business went broke in five and a half years. You
lost $31 million in five and a half years. But you
should be questioning yourself is why would such
a mess - like you are the Premier, you appoint the
Cabinet, you appoint the deputies. Your deputies
weren’t doing their jobs to protect the taxpayers
money, your Cabinet ministers, whoever they were
at the time, was not doing their job and Mr.
Premier you weren’t doing your job as protecting
taxpayers. 

It’s plain and simple. My question to you Mr.
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Premier, have you fired any Cabinet ministers over
this? Have you fired any deputy ministers over
this? If you were running a business, the board of
directors would be almost put behind bars for
something like, that this much money went. It
could become close, they would be definitely fired
by the shareholders of the business. 

So my question Mr. Premier, have you fired
anybody over this mess?

Honourable Premier Binns: No, Mr. Chairman
and of course the former government didn’t fire
anybody either when the former government wrote
off $13 million, $14.1 million I think the Joe Ghiz
government wrote off. I don’t think they fired
anybody over that.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Well Mr. Premier, you
talk about, you try like to put a spin on it that Royal
Star and them got grants, that North Co-op Atlantic
got grants, but also on April 12, 2002 that after
many days of questioning the minister, Mike
Currie, on Polar, that you ended up giving them
over and above the loan guarantees and all the
millions that you gave them. You gave them
assistance for marketing, value added equipment,
export development, and some help for  fish plant
modification also went out with grants, which the
Auditor doesn’t have, is another large amount of
money and there is another place here, oh yes,
MacKinley questions on aid to Polar Foods and
this is on April 17th, 2003, I found about a million -
1.5 million that Mike Currie was unaware of, of a
loan guarantee support of a major fish processing
plant, he was unaware of it. His staff had to come
back and it was a subsidized interested for Polar
Foods. In other words the $31 million is just a
touch of the iceberg if we want to add up the
grants and the loan guarantees and everything but
that’s gone.

My question is, Mr. Premier, what is your
government going to do to correct the mess that
you created here? It is an awful mess and it looks
like to me that when you set this up, you went to
Babineau which had a plant that was up and
running, if you read the Auditors Report he was the
last person to come in. So it looks like these
people went to him and got him in. He was actually
- now I can’t prove that until I get the Auditor back,
but this is what it looks like to me. You took a real
good plant and put it in there, than you gave him a
mortgage that you had to pay him $2 million in

order to foreclose on the business. Like something
doesn’t add up here, Mr. Premier and the
taxpayers want to get to the bottom of this.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Let’s give him a chance.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): And that’s where the
problem is.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Premier.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well the honourable
member is absolutely right in that there was a lot of
money paid out to this industry in grants and
writeoffs. There were certainly more paid out than
the $31 million and I’ve pointed out $25 or 26
million that the Callbeck and Ghiz governments
wrote off over - provided grants to before we came
into business and there was lots of money went
out before that and there’s been other dollars
allocated to other plants on PEI besides the $31
million to Polar.  All the suggesting and confirming
- the information that I provided earlier, the low
margins in this industry. The fact that it has not
been profitable. The fact that our firms were
competing in a market and in a processing
environment that was extremely competitive.

Where other governments were giving grants to
their operations. I mean (Indistinct) and FPI and
these companies didn’t come about just on
individual investment of dollars. It came about
because of investment of federal dollars and
provincial dollars and provinces that had more
resources than ours did. 

So our governments got into a trap of providing
money to our processing sector to keep them alive
and I’m sure everybody looked across the pond
and said well, we are not going to give up jobs to
somebody else. I know that happened in PEI and
I’m sure it happened in New Brunswick and Nova
Scotia. What I can tell you finally, Mr. Speaker, is
that from a PEI perspective, we are - have not
made any new commitments financing to the
lobster processing industry this year, first time I
can remember.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Well you know Mr.
Premier, there’s no lobster being processed right
now. You gave the plant away Polar for about half
of what it was actually worth, you paid for it.
There’s $31 million gone somewhere’s I don’t think
you would have to give to much assistance. But
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just to get the facts straight, Mr. Premier, you had
approved a $1.5 million support for a fish
processing plant for interest subsidy and that
turned out to be Polar Foods.   

You also approved marketing grants for them,
Polar Foods, and I can add them up and if you
want to start writing off, if you want to look at -
what really happened here Mr. Premier, is it not
that your government came into a big amount of
cash on May 24th, 2000 from the federal
government to the tune of $28.5 million.   They
came in with another $35 million the following year
of April 16th. Tremendous amount of money for the
province, you people were playing Cabinet up
there instead of looking after the ship and the
taxpayers lost some money and taxpayers are
looking for somebody’s head to roll over this.

This is an awful pile of money, Mr. Premier. And
you know it and another thing is now you are
saying you were trapped. Well you weren’t
trapped. You ran for the Leadership of the
Conservative Party.  You got elected by a big
majority of the province and you got to take
responsibility. Don’t blame it on other people.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Premier, do you want to
respond?

Honourable Premier Binns: And I am taking
responsibility. I had to come with the Cabinet to a
decision to close plants, to buy out the Bank of
Nova Scotia, to try to rationalize this industry, but
Mr. Chairman contrary to what you said, we did not
give the plants away. We went to a public call.
Anybody and everybody in the fish processing
industry had an opportunity to bid for the assets
that were provided for. Many of the big players that
looked at it and studied it in depth, there were all
kinds of people flying in and out of PEI over that
month or so looking at it. Many of them backed
away. They didn’t even put in an offer, they didn’t
want it at any price, because they said that this
industry is plagued with too many difficulties.
There’s no guarantee of profitability. They weren’t
going to stick their necks out for an industry that
was in trouble and not knowing where
governments would be in the future.  

There was no guarantee what would happen in
New Brunswick or what happens in Nova Scotia or
what happens in Newfoundland or what the federal
government would do. Federal government for

years pumped into the lobster processing industry.
They haven’t been recently, they finally said they
are not going to expand anymore. Doesn’t mean
that they are not putting money into some other
sector. I see they are putting some money in New
Brunswick for salmon rearing at the moment, I
think. 

But the feeling with some of these companies that
this is too unpredictable and they are not going to
take a risk on the profitable enterprises that they
have by putting money into a risky venture here.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): But don’t you think,
Mr. Premier, in all fairness that you started a
venture. $31 million was lost plus the grants and
everything, subsidy that went into Polar besides
that, that anybody in their right mind won’t want to
come in and get - make a deal with this province.
In all fairness to the government because look at
the mess you made of things there and Mr.
Premier in all fairness probably to Polar, when you
raised the electrical rates by 20 per cent that put a
nail in Polar’s coffin right there. The cost of doing
business in the province of Prince Edward Island.

So Mr. Premier you can’t be just blaming
everybody. You got to take responsibility yourself
and the general public is looking for some heads to
roll in this, Mr. Premier, it’s a mess. 

The Auditor General says your Department of
Development is a mess. That’s what he says here.
We can’t do much about the past, but we can sure
correct the future and you’re still saying you’d do
the same thing the same over again. What I’m
saying to you is you should shake up development
and the Lending Agency and bring some sanity
back into that department.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Premier, respond.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well I differ with the
honourable member. He says we created the
mess. We inherited a mess, Mr. Chairman, no we
did. We had companies going bankrupt despite
major writeoffs, despite major grants. They were in
serious financial trouble. They presented a
business plan that would help them get them out of
that situation. There were no guarantees that it
wouldn’t happen, except from the taxpayers and
we did it because we really believed that this was
the best chance that presented itself at the time
and so that was the course of action that we chose
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to pursue.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Mr. Ghiz.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Thank you.  Mr.
Premier, you created Polar at the end of the day.
But the honourable chairman raises a lot of very
important issues and some of those issue are he
was asking a lot questions over the years that he
was Leader of the Opposition. Other people asked
a lot of questions about it. People were chastised
by you and your government for questioning
anything going on with Polar Foods and how could
you be talking about these things. Than now you
say that you are going to be in compliance with all
the recommendations, but the Auditor General
points out in his report of this year that in fact in
2002 Annual Report that there was numerous
recommendations made and in fact one of the
recommendations was that the Board of Directors
of BDI consider the effects of the contravention of
the Preferred Share Agreement and to recommend
to Executive Council appropriate action. 

We were advised when the followup on this item
took place in 2003, the Senior Management and
Executive Council had considered in preparing for
this review we’ve obtain all submissions to
Executive Council pertaining to Polar Foods. 

We could find no evidence that the submission on
this issue was ever presented to Executive
Council. Now I know you went with your line before
about holding a Cabinet meeting and the Clerk
wasn’t there so there was nobody there to take
notes. I don’t understand what you are doing
holding Cabinet meetings with nobody there to
take notes. 

That just shows irresponsibility right off the bat. But
in lieu of all the questions of that the honourable
Chairman just had, in lieu of this fact that
recommendations were made in 2002 in which you
indicated that you would follow up on. When in fact
the Auditor General points out that you never did
follow up on. How can anybody believe that now
you are going to start to follow up on these
recommendations in this report?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well you know this
is a - there was a sequence of events taking place
each year based on the situation that was
presented itself and in 2002 we did implement a
number of new things as I recall. We changed the

guarantees that were required. We called for
hypothecation and a hypothecation agreement for
all voting shares. We had a segregation of present
and future amounts owed to shareholders. We had
called for a Human Resource review of
management in October of 2002, we asked the
directors fees to stop and early in 2003 -

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): They didn’t though.

Honourable Premier Binns: No they didn’t. We
had a financial restructuring of Polar approved by
Executive Council so I mean yes, government was
involved through the piece. The Auditor’s right in
that there should of been more attention to
approval of some of the things that happened and
we will correct that but I say again I don’t believe in
the majority of cases it would of materially
changed the direction that took place.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No, but taxpayers
dollars could of been protected and that was your
job as the Premier to obey the rules and
regulations of government and protect taxpayers
dollars. 

But I’m going ask a question and the member from
Montague-Kilmiur asked a very good question.
Had to do with the creation of Polar Foods and
there are still a lot of issues surrounding and
unanswered questions surrounding the creation of
Polar Foods and you are right it was at the end of
the day the six shareholders I guess, came to
yourself with the proposal but the original creation
of Polar Foods was because there was originally
three fish plants in Kings County that were in
financial trouble and they came to you and you told
them to go out and come back with a plan. One of
those partners had dropped off, I’m not sure which
one it was. My question is, the original two plants
from Kings County, which two plants were there,
Mr. Premier? Were they the two in your riding?

Honourable Premier Binns: I never said there
were three Kings County plants in trouble. I said
some of the plants that came forward in this
venture were in trouble. Others were surviving but
expressed to us the view that they couldn’t
continue surviving in the long term, because there
was to much chaos in the industry.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Which two
companies were there?
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Honourable Premier Binns: Well I’m not going to
be specific about that.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Why not?

Honourable Premier Binns: Because.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Its all done now.
Polar Foods - the jobs are lost, the money is lost.
Tell us who came to you originally to look for this
amalgamation. Was it two companies from your
riding, Mr. Premier?   We know that it was two
Kings County companies.

Honourable Premier Binns: Over a period of
time, I’ve met with most of the players in the
industry in this regard.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No, was it the two
from your riding?

Honourable Premier Binns: There were more
than the two from my riding.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No, but it says here
that there was three. This is an answer to an oral
questions that you submitted and three Kings
County packers discussed the idea of merger
amalgamation approached government for
professional financial assistance, but one of the
three packers is not interested and the idea was
dropped. Was the other two fish plant owners from
your riding, Mr. Premier? You should be able to
recall that?

Honourable Premier Binns:   Well as I’ve
indicated I met over time with most of the
processors across PEI.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): We’re talking about
the beginning formation of Polar Foods.

Honourable Premier Binns: I realize that. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Why can’t you
answer the question?

Honourable Premier Binns: Why, because there
were-

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): You don’t want to
answer the question or you don’t know the answer.

Honourable Premier Binns: You don’t want to
hear the answer.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No I do want to
hear the answer.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well -

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): It’s very simple it’s
a yes or a no.

Honourable Premier Binns: I’m telling you that
overtime many of the plants across PEI were
expressing difficulties. They weren’t just in Kings
County, some of them were in Prince County and
so it wasn’t just a Kings County issue. It was a
provincial wide issue.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): I’m not saying it
was. There’s two that came to you at the
beginning. We know that now for sure. 

Honourable Premier Binns: Where is the
beginning? I have to take you back and that’s why
I go back.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No at the
beginning, “97" for the formation of Polar Foods.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well it just didn’t
appear. I grant you there was a day. . .

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L):   The two that came
in 97, were they from your riding?

Honourable Premier Binns: There was a day that
the company was incorporated.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Obviously this
(Indistinct) .

Honourable Premier Binns:   But what was the
beginning before that?  There were many, many
discussions before that and I can’t recall exactly
who spoke to me when.  I talked to all of them over
time. 

Honourable Premier Binns: Now, Mr. Bagnall
also raised a very interesting question and that
was to do with a lot of the smaller plants, or not
smaller plants, but plants that weren’t able to open
and they have lost confidence in you, Mr. Premier,
because they were worried that they weren’t
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getting the full truth from you and I remember you
were right ,we did attend a lot of different meetings
in Howard’s Cove, in Anglo, in Gaspereaux, and at
many of those meetings and I believe they were
right around the 10th of March is what I recall and
I’m sure you recall yourself and I remember in
Gaspereaux, the people from your own riding, Mr.
Premier, asked you a direct question and that
direct question was, are you going to allow our
plant to be bought and you said, yes and someone
else came up to the mike and they said Mr.
Premier, will you allow our plant to have a lobster
processing licence if it’s bid on and you said, yes.
Do you remember saying those remarks?

Honourable Premier Binns: No I don’t recall
saying exactly that. In fact what we did indicate -
what I indicated at that time as I recall, is that while
the initial invitation that Ernst & Young put out was
for two plants. We said to the companies or to
Ernst & Young and to the people who were
inquiring, if they had a different combination of
companies or rather than the two that, being
Souris and Keeping & MacKay Plant if they - for
example, were in more interested in Grahams than
Keeping & MacKay that they should make that
known, that should be part of their bid. That’s what
I say.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Before you go any
further and before you dig yourself any deeper,
you had already made up your mind and in fact we
have now an email from March 3rd, 2004 and this
was a week before you attended those meetings
and it says here and this is from Kent Scales.  

In conjunction with the province’s announced
intention to engage in the rationalization of the fish
processing capacity in Prince Edward Island, I
would request that Ernst & Young Incorporated in
its capacity as receiver and manager of Polar
Foods International Corporated provide a request
to the Canadian Food Inspection Agency to de-
register the following facilities of Polar Foods
International Incorporated, Anglo Tignish,
Howard’s Cove, Summerside, Red Head, and
Grahams Pond. 

Now Mr. Premier, you went into those communities
in Gaspereaux, in Anglo Tignish, in Howard’s Cove
and you said yes, your plants can be bid on, just
like you were saying there. If they want to do it, but
you had already made up your mind according to
this email here, which plants were going to have

lobster processing licences and which plants were
not.

Honourable Premier Binns: No.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Why in fact did you
do that to the people of those communities?

Honourable Premier Binns: I had not made up
my mind and government was clear. Government
was clear about that.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Why did you send
this email?

Honourable Premier Binns: Government was
clear in the fact that if companies that were
interested in these assets felt that there was a
better package for survival than the two that was
put on the block, they should make that known and
that would be considered.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Well the email
should not of gone out than. Would you say that
the email was perhaps a little before it’s time then?
Because this email you’ve already decided which
plants were going down.

Honourable Premier Binns: That email may of
been clarified at a later date. I’d have to check on
that. But I was very clear. I recall in regard to the
Howard’s Cove plant and the Anglo plant, I
remember people this far away in my face saying
will you allow this plant - will you give us our
licence and I said it is very unlikely but I said if
someone wants to bid and they can make a strong
case for it than they should put that case forward
and it will be considered.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): That’s were the
problem is Mr. Premier.  People, there’s to many,
I can’t recalls, there’s to I recalls this and than we
have to correct something after and that’s where
the problem is with this whole issue and that’s why
I believe we need a public inquiry to get to the
bottom of all these issues.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Thank you.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):  Let the Premier -

Honourable Premier Binns: No, I’ll -
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Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess, Mr. Premier I just
wanted to make a comment and the comment I
was in that meeting in Gaspereaux also and the
question was asked to you and your response at
that time was that there was a rift out, there was
only going to be two companies kept going. That if
whoever won the bid requested that Graham’s -
that they would sooner have Graham’s than
Wendell MacKays. . .

Honourable Premier Binns:   Keeping MacKay
and Wendell Graham.

Jim Bagnall (PC):    . . . that would be looked at.
So you did make that comment and you did say
those exact words that you just said. I just wanted
to reenforce it because I sat there and listened to
it and you were put on the spot whether Graham’s
would still open and you were very up front on that
issue and I want to make sure that that gets out.
That you were up front, you did say that if whoever
had the best bid wanted that plant to stay open,
than that would be looked at. I don’t think you
could of been any more plainer. You didn’t promise
anybody that Graham’s was going to be opened
that night and as a matter of fact I thought you
were pretty strong in the extent that unless the bid
- whoever was bidding on that plant said that, then
that was what was going to happen. So just - 

I guess one other question and when Polar took
over, how much more dollars in expanding in the
exporting industry took place because of the
takeover than what was being happening before.
I know that the six plants did export but when Polar
took over there was an increase and I understand
there was an increase in the exporting and the
cash flow to Prince Edward Island. Can you tell
that what that amount was again? Somehow I
don’t think I have that figure.

Honourable Premier Binns: Well I’m not sure if
I know exactly what you are looking for. Sales
were $65 million a year among the companies that
were involved in Polar when it started. They grew
as high $158 million, wages $8.7 million started I’m
told grew to about $12 million total of $75 million
over the six years.

Lobster prices at $3.25 per canners at the start,
Obviously went up. I couldn’t get the exact
number. Raw product of purchases grew to $48
million, that would be roughly the change in
economic activity. The change in economic activity

was substantial.

Jim Bagnall (PC): I guess my only concern was,
Sir, if all those increases took place and which
they did it’s kind of hard. How come the company
couldn’t make money?

Honourable Premier Binns: Well that is
something that obviously concerns everybody. The
earlier - as I recall year one, the company got
underway just as the season was opening, new
company. They did not make money that year,
probably things were to cast in stone in terms of
shore prices, they had already bought their various
packaging and labour wages were established and
so on. They lost money the first year. Second year
as I recall the company reduced its losses about
half. Seemed as though they were starting to make
some gains, they were starting to jell as a unit.
Third year they made a small profit, not a big profit,
for sure, but they made a small profit, so it looked
like things were going in the right direction. I think
the next year was  2001, they lost 3.5 or 3.8
whatever it was. 

Why did that start to happen?  A whole lot of things
came into the picture. Could include things as
innocent to us as September 11th. The fact that
September 11th happened the restaurant seafood
business sort of collapsed. People weren’t buying
the product. They were selling at lower prices. Our
dollar against the US dollar changed in position.
They were locked in at whatever prices they were
buying for their lobster, they still had to pay
rebates in the spring I sure that sort of thing. And
we’ve got a lot of the stuff here. I know they lost
money and I think all of those things go into it. Did
the management work well enough as a team? 
Some people suggest they didn’t but on the other
hand, these were some of the most knowledgeable
people in the industry, so it’s hard to pinpoint just
why the company could not be successful.

Jim Bagnall (PC): Okay one other question.
There’s a lot of talk around the $14 million that was
given to Polar in July of 2003 for a loan. It’s my
understanding and maybe you can correct me if
I’m wrong. At that same time of year for the last
three or four years that Polar was in the system,
there was an operating loan given to them each
year at that time. Am I right or wrong on that, and
if so was there a practice change or do we just
continue giving out/renewing the loan each year
approximately at that same period of time?
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Honourable Premier Binns (PC):  Yes,  there
were guarantees each year from the start. They
increased over time as the company grew and,  as
I said earlier,  it was not unusual - it may of been
July. The reason it would be July is because the
bulk of lobster landings of course are in May and
June and so processors owe fishermen for
lobsters for that time of the year. Also they are in
the heaviest part of the processing season. They
haven’t finished processing. But they haven’t
moved much lobster into the marketplace yet. So
their expenses are at a high point in July, but their
revenues are just beginning and as the company
increased it’s purchases and increased it’s
workforce that requirement grew. And  particularly
in 2003,  as I explained earlier, the market was
soft, prices were low, FPI said don’t sell, hold on.
The prices will come up. And, you know, they were
a commission buyer, they’d be getting a better
price if the prices came up and that was putting the
company out of margin. That’s why government
provided a guarantee at that time. We didn’t want
them to lose money by selling too early in a soft
market.

Jim Bagnall (PC): So it really wasn’t a one time
thing. It happened periodically over the years, the
same thing happened?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Yes, it wasn’t
exactly the same but there were. . . 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L):   (Indistinct)

Honourable Pat Binns, Premier: But there were
guarantees in other years as well.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Okay we got Cletus
Dunn. Just one thing to clear the record here, Mr.
Premier, you’re not volunteering to be here. We
invited you.  The committee.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): I volunteered,
Mr. Chairman,  thank you,  to committee members
that I would like to come. And so our committee .
. . 

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): No you never said the
Chair. So you got your committee members, your
Caucus members to invite you here. Anyway
(Indistinct) .  So that’s good to know then.  See,
what we understood was Wayne Collins moved a
motion to have you Mr. Premier,  also Mike Currie,

Mitch Murphy, Wes MacAleer and Kevin MacAdam
to come before us. I thought it was his motion,
moved and seconded but it was on your request
that you volunteered , so that’s cleared the record.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): That’s good.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):   So we know where
the committee gets their orders from, Mr. Premier,
and we also know that the committee is good even
when your under budget spending raised
concerns, your committee shut her all down. So at
least the committee, they are earning their $5500
clapper fees, Mr. Clapper go ahead, or Mr. Dunn
go ahead. I shouldn’t say clapper, Mr. Dunn go
ahead. Cletus,  go ahead. Ask your premier a
question. Maybe he told you to ask this question,
too.

Cletus Dunn (PC): Any other editorial comments
or . . .

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Well,  he just said he
was the one directing that you take him. That he
volunteered to come and he told you to get him
here. You guys took  the orders and you get the
$5500 clapper fees.

Cletus Dunn (PC): Are you through.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Go ahead, yes.

Cletus Dunn (PC): Thank you. I guess I want to
ask the premier a question about  the philosophy
of government regarding processing plants and I’m
not just talking fish plants, I’m talking beef plant in
Borden, Garden Meat Products, Cavendish Farms,
McCain, Agri-West. What’s the government’s
philosophy on processing, even outside the fishing
industry?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well it is a
good question, it’s a difficult question, but I think
government has two roles here.  One is to try and
manage the public funds, the other is to try and
create economic activity.  And when a major sector
of the industry is in trouble for various reasons
government is usually called on, expected to
support that industry. To use an comparison we
have supported the potato industry through a
number of crisis. I would say in actual dollars to a
much greater extent than we probably,  and when
I say we I’m talking about collective governments,
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supported that industry probably more than the fish
processing sector. We have helped with the beef
plant, for example,  partly in recognition of the fact
there’s been a crisis in the beef industry. And  one
of the ways to try to turn that around is rather than
having our producers export their cattle or ship
them all the way to Ontario for processing that we
would have some processing here in Atlantic
Canada and be able to sell that product into  the
market place. 

So government has to look at those two issues at
the same time. The economic opportunity or the
potential economic loss if an industry collapses as
well as the investment of public dollars. Now
obviously over the years government has provided
grants and writeoffs to the seafood processing
industry. Previous governments have done it on
the same scale that we have, just this has been
more public because we have one company that
government assisted with the creation of,  which
has collapsed. But it is not materially different from
some of the other investments or writeoffs in the
past

Cletus Dunn (PC): Thank you.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Mr. Brown.

Richard Brown (L): Thank you.    Mr. Premier, I
also want to thank you for coming here today too.
A lot of constituents are asking me and a lot of
people are asking me is the shareholders walked
away with a substantial amount of money here.
Even at the formation of the company we see that
they put their assets into the plant, into the
company and right off the bat their were given $11
million or they took $11 million for themselves. A
few weeks later into that company they moved
their inventory and receivables from their other
companies into the Polar company and took out
another $8.2 million and over the life of the
company, they continued to take out money in
contravention of the Company Act and you were
told about this a number of times according to the
Auditor General, you know, that  they were
contravening the Act here. But BDI,  which is
yourself, continued to allow this to happen. Why
would you continue to allow this to happen?  If this
was a partnership involved here, you know,  on the
first day of the company set up they went out and
took your line of credit, maxed it out, maxed your
line of  credit you gave them and paid themselves
out. Wouldn’t that tell you that,  hey we haven’t

gotten off to a good start here? 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well I don’t
think that’s exactly correct, Honourable Member.
As I recall these companies did move inventory
into Polar that they had produced in  their own
companies and that that  was paid out over time.
I think there was an initial payment to the
shareholders for that product and about one-third
of it,  two-thirds roughly,  was paid for over time.
But don’t forget, I mean these companies had
expenses in producing this product.  They had to
buy the lobster, they had to run the plants, they
had to pay the workers that processed it. This was
an expense to them. They needed to get rid of that
product. So it was sold to Polar and as Polar sold
it, then they paid for it.  So you can’t assume that
they made $8 million or whatever it was. They
obviously had expenses in putting up that product.

In terms of the fact that they got $11 million that
was related to the fact that the company according
to the people who did the assessment on the value
of the company and put the value of the company
at something like $26 million and that wasn’t with
all of the Souris plant in it.   I think there was
another $6 million that wasn’t included there was
about $32 million worth of assets but anyway
purposes here, $26 million we’ll say.  So the I think
the 54 per cent  of that was taken as equity, 14
million of these people in the company which they
didn’t realize on, which they lost when the
company went down that because there was no
value left in those preferred shares they had.  And
the 11 million, I mean that they got for their plants
which they rolled into the Polar deal,  I expect and
I know that some of them had considerable debts
against that 11 million. So it wasn’t as though they
received 11 million and had it free and clear.

Richard Brown (L): But we’ll never know that.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Many of them
had debts owing that they had to pay off. And so
you can’t say well they necessarily made 11 million
there, they didn’t make 11 million. Some probably
got , were relatively free of debt and probably did
make a profit but than again they were giving up
their entity as in terms of their own holdings.

Richard Brown (L): Was there ever an audit done
on that inventory. Did you ever say hold it now,  we
want to go in and check that the $8.2 million worth
of inventory we’re buying with our line of credit that
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we want to make sure that we are getting value for
money. Did we ever go in and check that we are
not buying the lobster for $20? 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well I wouldn’t
know exactly all of the appraisals that were done.
Certainly the assets of the companies, the hard
assets, the physical buildings and so on were
valued and that’s where they come up with the 26
plus the,  I think,  other six that the Souris plant
was worth.  I don’t know how exactly how they
assessed the value of the inventory.

Richard Brown (L): I guess one other person,
some other people are saying to me. Well
government built the Souris plant, like we built it.
Cost government $7.3 million the Babineau plant
I guess we’d call it. But they rolled that company
into the new company and they were paid out 44
per cent  on that money. So what would you say to
an Islander like, you know, what  would I tell a
constituent that comes up to me and says we built
the plant, we gave it to the guy, and than we gave
him more money to take the plant back? Like what
do I tell that person?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well I don’t
know  and I guess you should tell because it was
your party that . . .

Richard Brown (L): You sold him the plant. You
gave him the plant.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): . . . that put that
$8 million plant in place.

Richard Brown (L): That’s right, we built the
plant. 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): And the owner
had very little in it.

Richard Brown (L): Yes, and you paid twice for it
than.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): But that deal
was all structured before we came along.

Richard Brown (L): No, no. Who gave the money,
who agreed to paying out the money. Why would
you sell . . . 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): You guys built

the $8 million plant.

Richard Brown (L): But Premier why would you
sit at the table, a guy sitting across from you got a
plant for nothing, we just paid for it, the taxpayers
of Prince Edward Island and agree to give millions
of dollars back on that plant that we already built
for him? Why did you agree to that? That’s what
people ask me and I just say well,  I’ll ask the
question, he’s coming to Public Accounts. He’s a
good fellow, he’ll answer it honestly. 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well I think it all
flowed from the original deal that was put together
by the former Liberal government.

Richard Brown (L): So we made the deal to buy
the plant back for twice?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): No, there was
a new deal with the Polar operation. . . 

Richard Brown (L): You made the new deal.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): . . . obviously.
But the ownership aspects of it I mean essentially
he owned the plant and government had built it,
the federal and provincial governments,  and so
you know whether I could argue that you shouldn’t
have  built the plant for him in the first place. But I
won’t. I mean it’s a good plant, but you’d really
question whether you needed an extra plant when
we already said the industry was operating at 30
per cent capacity. 

Richard Brown (L): But you rebuilt North Lake.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): And yet you
guys . . . 

Richard Brown (L): You just rebuilt Acadian.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): . . .built this big
plant. It only added to the capacity of the province
and that’s partly why the other smaller packers all
the way up and down the shore were in more
trouble, because you built this big plant when you
were already overcapacity. 

Richard Brown (L): Okay,  it seems like these
guys are getting money going in the door and
getting money going out the door and that’s what
Islanders are concerned about. They don’t mind
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losing money for $8 an hour jobs or things like
that, but the Auditor stated here $24 million went
out the door. And, you know,  Company Act was
broken. But lets go to the end here.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): If I could interrupt just
a second. Maybe the premier can clear. That plant
that you’re  talking about was provincial was 3.2
million, feds were 4.28 million, total 7.3 million. On
8.16 of the Auditor’s Report what I have a problem
with is 1997 a private corporation entered into a
lease agreement for a dollar with government
whereby purchased the plant for a normal amount
of operation after five years for a small amount.
Your government was in power in 1997 that signed
the agreement with this plant that you bought
back. Now my question did the Auditor make a
mistake or was it your government that actually put
the deal in place in 1997?   Because you signed -
a private corporation entered a lease agreement
for a dollar with the government and you were in
power in 1997.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well the deal
that the Liberal government put in place I think it
was only completed in 2002. It wasn’t final until
2002.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): No, but you signed it
with this here lease agreement.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): No, you fellows
were a part of that deal from the start. There was
a five year deal . . . 

Richard Brown (L): We owned the plant.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): . . .it was very
complicated.  

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): A private corporation,
yes.

Richard Brown (L): The people owned the plant,
we gave it away for a dollar.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): But a private
corporation entered into a lease agreement for a
dollar in 1997 and that was yours was in power in
1997.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Yes, but your
deal . . . 

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): I thought it did
happen under the previous government because
Usen Fisheries burnt down, they  put up a plant
down there to hire people,  jobs and it’s a real
good plant and that’s why it’s only one of the
plants that was actually bought that was probably
worth some money in the Polar fiasco that you got
into. But it’s just strange why the deal agreement
was signed for a dollar in 1997. It’s just - I’ll have
to ask the Auditor I guess.

Unidentified Member: Call the hour.

Richard Brown (L): I’m not done.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): We’ll go with Robert
and then we’ll have to call the hour.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): In section . . . 

Richard Brown (L): He’ll come back.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): In section 6.16 Mr.
Premier, they’re  talking about the 3.5 million
additional that was given out in 1999. Do you see
the section that I’m talking about.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Which page are
you on?

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): It’s on page 28. 

So I’m just going to read section 6.6.   “We would
have expected at least an attempt to obtain an
additional security given  the increased risk to the
province. Typically security would include personal
guarantees and a direct charge of current assets.

We noted that there was no additional security
taken. In addition at that time, on the request of
Polar Foods, the annual audited financial
statements of the company were being provided
only” -  and I stress only - “to the Deputy Minister
of Development. Under this agreement the
development officers could not monitor the
financial results of the company on a regular basis.
It would be reasonable to expect that with an
increase exposure of 3.5 million on working capital
credit, the monitoring requirements would be more
stringently applied.”

Now I remember when you were interviewed,  I
believe it was on CBC Television on Canada Now,
and you mentioned that the Auditor General
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Report,  yes there were some areas where the
bureaucrats didn’t do their follow up. But what  I
discovered here from this 1999,  and this is only
one year after Polar Foods was formed, what you
did was you took the control away from the
bureaucrats and you put it into the Deputy
Minister’s level and what the Deputy Minister’s
level is,  and as the Honourable Chairman so
rightly pointed out, is that’s an appointment that
the premier makes and Deputy Ministers in
government report to the Chief Deputy Minister
and that happens to be Peter McQuaid who is also
your Chief of Staff. 

So what we can see from this, Mr. Premier and I’d
like you to respond to this, would you not agree
that since 1999 it was the politicians controlling
everything to do with this file and not any
bureaucrat’s mistakes as you so indicated on CBC
Television.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC):  No I certainly
won’t. We asked for and obtained a seat on the
Board of Directors. We had BDI staff at those
meetings. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): How do you explain
this paragraph then?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well,  that was
for that particular time. But that situation changed.
We . . . 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Why was it done
then?   Why would you want to take it  away from
bureaucrats and put it only into the  political
process?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): No it wasn’t
only in the political process. The Board of Directors
of Business Development consists of the Deputy
Minister . . .

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): They never met.
The Auditor General already indicated that the
Board of Directors never met. So you can’t say
that the Board of Directors of BDI. That’s a
ridiculous statement to make, Mr. Premier.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well there was
a board and the board consisted of . . .

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Yes, but the board
never met. 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): . . . deputy
ministers. And the deputy minister here obviously
was the main person on the file. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): So why did you
take it away from the bureaucrats to monitor these
processes? Why was it only given to the deputy
ministers?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): I’m sure that
the Deputy continued to discuss this with his staff.
I mean I wasn’t obviously there for those
conversations but I don’t think it was exactly that
way but yet the statements were provided to the
Deputy Minister, doesn’t mean that the Deputy
Minister didn’t have discussions with his staff.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): It’s says only to the
deputy minister? Only,  and that’s why I
emphasized the word only. Nobody else wanted .
. .  they didn’t want anybody else to see those
financial audited statements. They only wanted the
deputy ministers.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well I . . . 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): You can’t explain it.
Well, will  you just say that you can’t explain it?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): The auditor
suggested that shouldn’t happened,  I agree. But
again,  I don’t believe that would have materially
changed anything at that stage. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): See what you fail to
understand . . .

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): What year was
that?

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): . . .  is that the
whole report right from beginning to the end
indicates where you overlooked your own rules
and that’s is why we lost the at least $31 million on
this.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): No. As I’ve said
from the outset this industry has been in trouble for
a long time.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): We are talking
about this report.
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Honourable Premier Binns (PC): I realize that.
The reasons money was lost here were not just
because of bureaucratic or government error. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): I’m not saying
bureaucrats. You said bureaucrats.  I want to be
100 per cent  positive on that.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): It’s being a
succession of problems that go back as long as I
can remember with this industry. The industry has
not,  for the most part,  been  profitable. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): It’s not your fault.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): We’ve had
closure after closure after closure in this sector.
We have people who own lobster processing
plants that don’t process any lobster in them
because they can’t make any money at it. That’s
the reality of this business.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): At the end of the
day Polar was your creation and for the first time
ever . . . 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Yes.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): . . . in the history of
Prince Edward Island a forensic audit has to be
preformed on something that you formed.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): And we agreed
with that forensic audit because if there has been
any thing that is not compliant with the law, if there
are irregularities considered . . .

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Well you allow the
forensic audit to go directly from the formation of
Polar Foods to the end?

Honourable Pat Binns, Premier:   Well, the
Auditor has recommended a forensic audit on this
part of it. 

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): Oh I know he did,
but will you allow it to go from beginning to end? 

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Well we are not
putting any constraints on the forensic audit. The
auditor suggest it be from the point of the  FPI
involvement on. I think he looked at the other in
considerable detail as he suggests here and he’s

recommend a forensic audit on that portion.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Mr. McKenna.

Dr. David McKenna (PC): Just wanted to move
for an adjournment because our agenda initially
stated it here from 2:00 to 4:00 and some of us
have other commitments to make and I wonder if
we could call for an adjournment.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):   Under the, yes you
can move it, but under this agenda that we
approved it’s 2:00 o’clock and I’d just assume you
were giving the premier the . . . Mr. Premier,  are
you prepared to come back again if the committee
so decides?

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): Yes, Mr.
Chairman. I’d have to look at the dates and so on
and the schedule.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Yes, I know that.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC):   But I think
probably you should hear from the other ministers
and I’ll consider that down the road.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):  Getting back to,  our
wires I guess got crossed. I didn’t know that you
requested your colleagues to bring you forward. All
I can talk by is what happened at the Committee
meeting and that was a motion moved,  debated
and discussed that they would be putting you
before us, Mr. Premier which is the reason you are
here. I didn’t know you had worked something out
with your colleagues. I would like you to inform
your colleagues that if you would like to come at
least they could tell the Chairman so I wouldn’t be
. . .

Wayne Collins (PC): Clarification, Mr. Chairman,
clarification, Mr. Chairman.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): Just wait. We’ll give
you clarification. You brought it in. Like you were
calling the premier, like you were getting tough,
you were call in the premier. Turns out the premier
told you to call him in. So I want to thank you Mr.
Premier for coming before us.

Honourable Premier Binns (PC): I didn’t tell him,
I suggested that I’d like to come before the
committee.
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Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): I’m glad you came
before us, Mr. Premier, but the next time you get
your colleagues sort of let the Chairman know so
I won’t say that we asked you to come before us.
Just to clear up the thing. A motion for
adjournment always an adjournment. Is it the wish
of the committee that we adjourn?

Jim Bagnall (PC): Adjourn until Friday.

Wilbur MacDonald (PC) :     Who are you having
in Friday?

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    The Auditor.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L): No.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair): That’s who is on the
. . . that’s why we had him for Friday.

Honourable Robert Ghiz (L):   Next meeting we
can . . .

Cletus Dunn (PC):    I make a recommendation
we bring Mr. Currie in on Friday (indistinct)

Ron MacKinley (L)Chair:    The Auditor General’s
coming in. We’ve already got the Auditor booked.

Cletus Dunn (PC):    We can change that.

Ron MacKinley (L) (Chair):   No, the meeting is
adjourned. 


